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period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    ☒  Yes    ☐  No
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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STEREOTAXIS, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

 
   June 30,   December 31,  
   2016   2015  
   (Unaudited)     
Assets    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 3,858,089   $ 5,593,582  
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $251,933 and $93,478 in 2016 and 2015, respectively    5,057,503    6,376,470  
Inventories    5,334,687    4,504,282  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    569,825    668,659  

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    14,820,104    17,142,993  
Property and equipment, net    857,869    1,067,321  
Intangible assets, net    536,229    635,889  
Other assets    44,774    31,693  

    
 

   
 

Total assets   $ 16,258,976   $ 18,877,896  
    

 

   

 

Liabilities and stockholders’ deficit    
Current liabilities:    

Short-term debt   $ 3,000,000   $  —    
Accounts payable    2,427,697    1,840,135  
Accrued liabilities    5,431,055    6,058,390  
Deferred revenue    7,435,975    7,445,935  
Warrants and debt conversion features    627,466    794,130  

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    18,922,193    16,138,590  
Long-term debt    18,114,408    18,080,159  
Long-term deferred revenue    620,945    2,009,198  
Other liabilities    270,296    275,603  

    
 

   
 

Total liabilities    37,927,842    36,503,550  
Stockholders’ deficit:    

Preferred stock, par value $0.001; 10,000,000 shares authorized, none outstanding at 2016 and 2015    —      —    
Common stock, par value $0.001; 300,000,000 shares authorized, 21,846,095 and 21,551,173, shares issued

at 2016 and 2015, respectively    21,846    21,551  
Additional paid in capital    449,081,382    448,517,472  
Treasury stock, 4,015 shares at 2016 and 2015    (205,999)   (205,999) 
Accumulated deficit    (470,566,095)   (465,958,678) 

    
 

   
 

Total stockholders’ deficit    (21,668,866)   (17,625,654) 
    

 
   

 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit   $ 16,258,976   $ 18,877,896  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying notes.
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STEREOTAXIS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)
 
  Three Months Ended June 30,   Six Months Ended June 30,  
  2016   2015   2016   2015  
Revenue:     

Systems  $ 935,978   $ 3,092,935   $ 3,010,997    5,924,113  
Disposables, service and accessories   6,938,645    6,571,315    13,511,632    13,271,163  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total revenue   7,874,623    9,664,250    16,522,629    19,195,276  
Cost of revenue:     

Systems   395,898    1,849,275    1,478,996    3,249,542  
Disposables, service and accessories   699,173    1,093,988    1,796,888    2,324,359  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total cost of revenue   1,095,071    2,943,263    3,275,884    5,573,901  
Gross margin   6,779,552    6,720,987    13,246,745    13,621,375  

Operating expenses:     
Research and development   1,421,380    1,419,826    2,894,465    2,905,533  
Sales and marketing   4,211,706    4,250,779    8,105,819    8,285,150  
General and administrative   2,786,046    2,772,708    5,372,838    5,567,297  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total operating expenses   8,419,132    8,443,313    16,373,122    16,757,980  
   

 
   

 
   

 
   

 

Operating loss   (1,639,580)   (1,722,326)   (3,126,377)   (3,136,605) 
Other income   135,370    999,169    166,664    106,792  
Interest income   140    493    362    1,355  
Interest expense   (829,046)   (816,023)   (1,648,066)   (1,645,810) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Net loss  $ (2,333,116)  $ (1,538,687)  $ (4,607,417)  $ (4,674,268) 
   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Net loss per common share:     
Basic  $ (0.11)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.21)  $ (0.22) 
Diluted  $ (0.11)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.21)  $ (0.22) 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per common share:     
Basic   21,793,583    21,007,103    21,702,597    20,871,244  
Diluted   21,793,583    21,007,103    21,702,597    20,871,244  

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

See accompanying notes.
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STEREOTAXIS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
 
   Six Months Ended June 30,  
   2016   2015  
Cash flows from operating activities    
Net loss   $(4,607,417)  $(4,674,268) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operating activities:    

Depreciation    185,802    134,025  
Amortization of intangibles    99,660    149,917  
Amortization of deferred finance costs    108,850    111,018  
Share-based compensation    566,975    637,246  
Adjustment of warrants    (166,664)   (106,792) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Accounts receivable    1,318,967    (969,414) 
Inventories    (806,755)   609,088  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    147,942    244,527  
Other assets    (13,081)   67,541  
Accounts payable    587,562    (60,014) 
Accrued liabilities    (627,335)   497,625  
Deferred revenue    (1,398,213)   (435,029) 
Other liabilities    (5,307)   (409,358) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash used in operating activities    (4,609,014)   (4,203,888) 
Cash flows from investing activities    
Purchase of equipment    —      (52,410) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    —      (52,410) 
Cash flows from financing activities    
Payments of deferred financing costs    (100,000)   —    
Proceeds from (payments of) revolving line of credit    3,000,000    —    
Payments of Healthcare Royalty Partners debt    (23,709)   (80,328) 
Proceeds from issuance of stock, net of issuance costs    (2,770)   695,598  

    
 

   
 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities    2,873,521    615,270  
    

 
   

 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    (1,735,493)   (3,641,028) 
    

 
   

 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    5,593,582    7,270,301  
    

 
   

 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 3,858,089   $ 3,629,273  
    

 

   

 

See accompanying notes.
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STEREOTAXIS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Notes to Financial Statements

In this report, “Stereotaxis”, the “Company”, “Registrant”, “we”, “us”, and “our” refer to Stereotaxis, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Epoch®,
Niobe®, Odyssey®, Odyssey Cinema™, Vdrive®, Vdrive Duo™, V-CAS™, V-Loop™, V-Sono™, V-CAS Deflect™, QuikCAS™, Cardiodrive®, and
Pegasus™ are trademarks of Stereotaxis, Inc. All other trademarks that appear in this report are the property of their respective owners.

1. Description of Business

Stereotaxis designs, manufactures, and markets the Epoch® Solution, an advanced remote robotic navigation system for use in a hospital’s
interventional surgical suite or “interventional lab”, that we believe revolutionizes the treatment of arrhythmias and coronary artery disease by enabling
enhanced safety, efficiency, and efficacy for catheter-based or interventional procedures. The Epoch Solution is comprised of the Niobe® ES Magnetic
Navigation System (“Niobe ES system”), Odyssey® Information Management Solution (“Odyssey Solution”), and the Vdrive® Robotic Navigation System
(“Vdrive system”) and related devices.

The Niobe ES system is designed to enable physicians to complete more complex interventional procedures by providing image-guided delivery of
catheters and guidewires through the blood vessels and chambers of the heart to treatment sites. This is achieved using externally applied magnetic fields that
govern the motion of the working tip of the catheter or guidewire, resulting in improved navigation, efficient procedures, and reduced X-ray exposure.

In addition to the Niobe ES system and its components, Stereotaxis has also developed the Odyssey Solution, which consolidates all lab information,
enabling doctors to focus on the patient for optimal procedure efficiency. The platform also features a remote viewing and recording capability called the
Odyssey Cinema™ system, an innovative system delivering synchronized content for optimized workflow, advanced care, and improved productivity. This
tool includes an archiving capability that allows clinicians to store and replay entire procedures or segments of procedures. This information can be accessed
from locations throughout the hospital’s local area network and over the global Odyssey Network, providing physicians with a tool for clinical collaboration,
remote consultation, and training.

Our Vdrive system provides navigation and stability for diagnostic and therapeutic devices designed to improve interventional procedures. The Vdrive
system complements the Niobe ES system’s control of therapeutic catheters for fully remote procedures and enables single-operator workflow. It is sold as
two options, the Vdrive system and the Vdrive Duo™ system. In addition to the Vdrive system and the Vdrive Duo system, we also manufacture and market
various disposable components which can be manipulated by these systems.

We promote the full Epoch Solution in a typical hospital implementation, subject to regulatory approvals or clearances. The full Epoch Solution
implementation requires a hospital to agree to an upfront capital payment and recurring payments. The upfront capital payment typically includes equipment
and installation charges. The recurring payments typically include disposable costs for each procedure, equipment service costs beyond the warranty period,
and software licenses. In hospitals where the full Epoch Solution has not been implemented, equipment upgrade or expansion may be implemented upon
purchase of the necessary components. As of June 30, 2016, the Company has an installed base of 129 Niobe ES systems.

The core components of Stereotaxis’ systems have received regulatory clearance in the United States, European Union, Canada, China, Japan and
various other countries. We have received regulatory clearance, licensing and/or CE Mark approvals necessary for us to market the Vdrive and Vdrive
Duo systems with the V-CAS, V-Loop and V-Sono devices in the U.S., Canada and European Union. The V-CAS Deflect catheter advancement system has
been CE Marked for sale in the European Union. We have received Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) clearance and the CE Mark necessary for us to
market our suite of Pegasus™ coronary peripheral guidewires in the United States and Europe.

Since our inception, we have generated significant losses. As of June 30, 2016, we have incurred cumulative net losses of approximately $470.6
million. In 2016, the Company plans to continue developing the Niobe ES system with the goal of furthering clinical adoption and new system placements.
We expect to incur additional losses in 2016 as we continue the development and commercialization of our products, conduct our research and development
activities, advance new products into clinical development from our existing research programs and fund additional sales and marketing initiatives. During
2016, we will continue to monitor operating expenses and make additional investments in certain targeted areas.
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Our existing cash, cash equivalents, and borrowing facilities may not be sufficient to fund our operating expenses and capital equipment requirements
through the next 12 months, which would require us to obtain additional financing. We may be required to raise capital or pursue other financing strategies to
continue our operations. Until we can generate significant cash flow from our operations, we expect to continue to fund our operations with cash resources
primarily generated from the proceeds of our past and future public offerings, private sales of our equity securities, and loans collateralized by working capital
and equipment. We continue to explore financing alternatives, which may include the sale of equity securities or non-core assets, strategic collaboration
agreements, debt financings, or distribution rights. We cannot accurately predict the timing and amount of our utilization of capital, which will depend on a
number of factors outside of our control.

We cannot assure that additional financing will be available on acceptable terms or that such financing will not be dilutive to our stockholders. If
adequate funds are not available to us, we could be required to delay development or commercialization of new products, to license to third parties the rights
to commercialize products or technologies that we would otherwise seek to commercialize ourselves, or to reduce the sales, marketing, customer support or
other resources devoted to our products, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and operational results. In
addition, we could be required to cease operations.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited financial statements of Stereotaxis, Inc. have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
for interim financial information and the instructions to Form 10-Q. Accordingly, they do not include all the disclosures required by U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, they include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim periods presented. Operating results for the six month period ended June 30, 2016
are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ended December 31, 2016 or for future operating periods.

These interim financial statements and the related notes should be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements and notes included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 11,
2016.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and debt. The carrying value of such amounts
reported at the applicable balance sheet dates approximates fair value. See Note 9 for disclosure of the fair value of debt.

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities, including warrants, at fair value on a recurring basis. General accounting principles for
fair value measurement established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities (“Level 1”) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(“Level 3”). See Note 11 for additional details.

Revenue and Costs of Revenue

The Company accounts for revenue using Accounting Standards Codification Topic 605-25, Multiple-Element Arrangements (“ASC 605-25”).

ASC 605-25 permits management to estimate the selling price of undelivered components of a bundled sale for which it is unable to establish vendor-
specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) or third-party evidence (“TPE”). This requires management to record revenue for certain elements of a transaction even
though it might not have delivered other elements of the transaction, for which it was unable to meet the requirements for establishing VSOE or TPE. The
Company believes that the guidance significantly improves the reporting of these types of transactions to more closely reflect the underlying economic
circumstances. This guidance also prohibits the use of the residual method for allocating revenue to the various elements of a transaction and requires that the
revenue be allocated proportionally based on the relative estimated selling prices.
 

7



Table of Contents

Under our revenue recognition policy, a portion of revenue for Niobe systems, Vdrive systems and certain Odyssey systems is recognized upon delivery,
provided that title has passed, there are no uncertainties regarding acceptance, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the sales price is fixed and
determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognized for other types of Odyssey systems upon completion of
installation, since there are no qualified third party installers. When installation is the responsibility of the customer, revenue from system sales is recognized
upon shipment since these arrangements do not include an installation element or right of return privileges. The Company does not recognize revenue in
situations in which inventory remains at a Stereotaxis warehouse or in situations in which title and risk of loss have not transferred to the customer. Amounts
collected prior to satisfying the above revenue recognition criteria are reflected as deferred revenue. Revenue from services and license fees, whether sold
individually or as a separate unit of accounting in a multiple-deliverable arrangement, is deferred and amortized over the service or license fee period, which
is typically one year. Revenue from services is derived primarily from the sale of annual product maintenance plans. We recognize revenue from disposable
device sales or accessories upon shipment and establish an appropriate reserve for returns. The return reserve, which is applicable only to disposable devices,
is estimated based on historical experience which is periodically reviewed and updated as necessary. In the past, changes in estimate have had only a de
minimis effect on revenue recognized in the period. We believe that the estimate is not likely to change significantly in the future.

Costs of systems revenue include direct product costs, installation labor and other costs, estimated warranty costs, and initial training and product
maintenance costs. These costs are recorded at the time of sale. Costs of disposable revenue include direct product costs and estimated warranty costs and are
recorded at the time of sale. Cost of revenue from services and license fees are recorded when incurred.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its grants of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, and restricted stock units and for its employee stock
purchase plan in accordance with the provisions of general accounting principles for share-based payments. These accounting principles require the
determination of the fair value of the share-based compensation at the grant date and the recognition of the related expense over the period in which the share-
based compensation vests.

The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the fair value of stock options and stock appreciation rights at the date of grant.
The resulting compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period, which is generally four years. Compensation expense is recognized only
for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures estimated based on the Company’s historical experience and future expectations. Restricted shares granted
to employees are valued at the fair market value at the date of grant. The Company amortizes the fair market value to expense over the service period. If the
shares are subject to performance objectives, the resulting compensation expense is amortized over the anticipated vesting period and is subject to adjustment
based on the actual achievement of objectives.

Net Earnings (Loss) per Common Share (“EPS”)

Basic and diluted net earnings (loss) per common share are computed by dividing the net income (loss) for the period by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding during the period.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted EPS:
 

  Three months ended June 30,   Six months ended June 30,  
  2016   2015   2016   2015  
Numerator:     
Numerator for basic EPS  $ (2,333,116)  $ (1,538,687)  $ (4,607,417)  $ (4,674,268) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Numerator for diluted EPS  $ (2,333,116)  $ (1,538,687)  $ (4,607,417)  $ (4,674,268) 
   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Denominator:     
Denominator for basic EPS—weighted average shares   21,793,583    21,007,103    21,702,597    20,871,244  

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Denominator for diluted EPS—weighted average shares   21,793,583    21,007,103    21,702,597    20,871,244  
   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

Basic EPS  $ (0.11)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.21)  $ (0.22) 
Diluted EPS  $ (0.11)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.21)  $ (0.22) 

In addition, the Company did not include any portion of unearned restricted shares, outstanding options, stock appreciation rights or warrants in the
calculation of diluted loss per common share because all such securities are anti-dilutive for all periods presented. The application of the two-class method of
computing earnings per share under general accounting principles for participating securities is not applicable during these periods because the Company’s
unearned restricted shares do not contractually participate in its losses.
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As of June 30, 2016, the Company had 686,383 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options and stock appreciation rights
at a weighted average exercise price of $8.66 per share, 2,040,365 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants at a weighted
average exercise price of $3.44 per share, and 1,212,496 shares of unvested restricted share units.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU” or “Update”) No. 2016-09,
“Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting”. This amendment is intended to simplify
several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or
liabilities, forfeitures, and classification on the statement of cash flows. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016 (January
1, 2017 for the Company) and interim periods within those fiscal years, with earlier application permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of this
guidance on its financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (ASC 842)”, which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract (i.e. lessees and lessors). The new standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases
as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will
determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, respectively. A
lessee is also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a term of greater than 12 months regardless of their classification.
Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating leases today. The new standard requires lessors to
account for leases using an approach that is substantially equivalent to existing guidance for sales-type leases, direct financing leases and operating leases.
ASC 842 supersedes the previous leases standard, ASC 840 Leases. The standard is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 31,
2018 (January 1, 2019 for the Company), with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this accounting standard
update.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): To simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes”. The
amendments in this Update require that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. The
amendments in this Update apply to all entities that present a classified statement of financial position. The current requirement that deferred tax liabilities
and assets of a tax-paying component of an entity be offset and presented as a single amount is not affected by the amendments in this Update. This standard
is effective for public companies for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 (January 1, 2017 for the Company),
and interim periods within those annual periods. We adopted this accounting standard update in 2015 and there was no impact to the results of operations or
cash flows.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, “Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory” regarding the subsequent
measurement of inventory as part of its Simplification Initiative. This standard is effective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2016 (January 1, 2017 for the Company), including interim periods within those fiscal years. This Update should be applied prospectively, and early
application is permitted as of the beginning of an interim or annual reporting period. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this accounting
standard update but do not expect this to significantly impact the results of operations, financial conditions, cash flows, or financial statement presentation.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, “Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance
Costs”. To simplify the presentation of debt issuance costs, the amendments in this Update require that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt
liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from that debt liability, consistent with the presentation of a debt discount. In August 2015, the
FASB issued ASU 2015-15, Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements—Amendments
to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to Staff Announcement at June 18, 2015 EITF Meeting (SEC Update), which adds the SEC staff’s guidance on the presentation
of debt issuance costs associated with lines of credit to the Codification. The SEC staff stated it will not object to an entity presenting the costs of securing
line-of-credit arrangements as an asset, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings. The Standard is effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015 (January 1, 2016 for the Company), and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption of the
amendments in this Update is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. We have adopted this accounting standard update. The
Company’s balance sheets as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 included $291,060 and $349,018, respectively, of deferred financing costs (excluding
$75,068 and $25,960, respectively, related to line-of-credit arrangements) that were, under the new guidance, presented as a direct reduction to debt liabilities.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, to communicate amendments to FASB Account Standards Codification Subtopic 205-40,
“Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern”. The ASU requires management to evaluate relevant conditions,
events and certain management plans that are known or reasonably knowable as of the evaluation date when determining whether substantial doubt about an
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern exists. Management will be required to make this evaluation for both annual and interim reporting periods.
Management will have to make certain disclosures if it concludes that substantial doubt exists and when it plans to alleviate substantial doubt about the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. The standard is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016 and for interim reporting periods
starting in the first quarter of 2017 (December 31, 2016 for the Company). Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting
this accounting standard update on our financial statement disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which converges the FASB’s and the International
Accounting Standards Board’s current standards on revenue recognition. The standard provides companies with a single model to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue guidance. The standard is effective for annual and interim periods beginning
after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permitted. The standard permits companies to either apply the adoption to all periods presented, or apply the
requirements in the year of adoption through a cumulative adjustment. In April 2015, the FASB issued an exposure draft related to the deferral of the effective
date, which would delay our effective date one year. Therefore, the standard would be effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15,
2017 (January 1, 2018 for the Company). We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this accounting standard update on our financial statements and
disclosures and have not concluded on an adoption method.

3. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:
 

   June 30, 2016   December 31, 2015 
Raw materials   $ 2,476,263    $ 2,065,676  
Work in process    876,105     24,758  
Finished goods    2,014,872     2,433,819  
Reserve for obsolescence    (32,553)    (19,971) 

    
 

    
 

Total inventory   $ 5,334,687    $ 4,504,282  
    

 

    

 

4. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following:
 

   June 30, 2016   December 31, 2015 
Prepaid expenses   $ 293,484    $ 454,822  
Deferred financing costs    75,068     25,960  
Deposits    245,650     136,583  
Deferred cost of revenue    397     82,987 

    
 

    
 

Total prepaid expenses and other assets    614,599     700,352  
Less: Noncurrent prepaid expenses and other assets    (44,774)    (31,693) 

    
 

    
 

Total current prepaid expenses and other assets   $ 569,825    $ 668,659  
    

 

    

 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 presentation.

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:
 

   June 30, 2016    December 31, 2015 
Equipment   $ 8,386,835    $ 8,496,636  
Equipment held for lease    303,412     303,412  
Leasehold improvements    2,320,368     2,320,368  

    
 

    
 

   11,010,615     11,120,416  
Less: Accumulated depreciation    (10,152,746)    (10,053,095) 

    
 

    
 

Net property and equipment   $ 857,869    $ 1,067,321  
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6. Intangible Assets

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had total intangible assets of $3,221,069. Accumulated amortization at June 30, 2016, was $2,684,840.

7. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
 

   June 30,    December 31, 
   2016    2015  
Accrued salaries, bonus, and benefits   $2,652,318    $ 3,053,012  
Accrued rent    1,159,038     1,361,379  
Accrued licenses and maintenance fees    575,583     666,373  
Accrued interest    494,067     494,703  
Accrued warranties    258,450     316,835  
Accrued taxes    313,379     324,226  
Other    248,516     117,465  

    
 

    
 

Total accrued liabilities    5,701,351     6,333,993  
Less: Long term accrued liabilities    (270,296)    (275,603) 

    
 

    
 

Total current accrued liabilities   $5,431,055    $ 6,058,390  
    

 

    

 

Our primary company facilities are located in St. Louis, Missouri where we currently lease approximately 52,000 square feet of office and 12,000
square feet of demonstration and assembly space. In the third quarter of 2013, the Company modified the existing lease agreement to terminate approximately
13,000 square feet of unimproved space. The costs associated with the termination were $515,138 and were accrued as a rent liability as of September 30,
2013. As of June 30, 2016, the remaining accrued costs associated with the termination were $233,197.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, the Company entered a sublease agreement to sublease 3,152 square feet of the first floor office space through
December 31, 2018. In July 2016, the Company and the subtenant mutually agreed to an early termination of the sublease, effective July 31, 2016.
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8. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of the following:
 

   June 30,    December 31,  
   2016    2015  
Product shipped, revenue deferred   $ 338,831    $ 366,388  
Customer deposits    1,050,000     2,505,000  
Deferred service and license fees    6,668,089     6,583,745  

    
 

    
 

Total deferred revenue    8,056,920     9,455,133  
Less: Long-term deferred revenue    (620,945)    (2,009,198) 

    
 

    
 

Total current deferred revenue   $7,435,975    $ 7,445,935  
    

 

    

 

9. Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Debt outstanding consists of the following:
 

   June 30, 2016    December 31, 2015  
   Carrying    Estimated    Carrying    Estimated  
   Amount    Fair Value    Amount    Fair Value  
Revolving line of credit, due March 31, 2018   $ 3,000,000    $ 3,000,000    $  —      $  —    
Healthcare Royalty Partners debt    18,114,408     18,405,468     18,080,159     18,429,177  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total debt    21,114,408     21,405,468     18,080,159     18,429,177  
Less current maturities    (3,000,000)    (3,000,000)    —       —    

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total long term debt   $18,114,408    $18,405,468    $18,080,159    $18,429,177  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

In accordance with general accounting principles for fair value measurement, the Company’s debt and credit facilities were measured at fair value as of
June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015. Long-term debt fair value estimates are based on estimated borrowing rates to discount the cash flows to their present
value (Level 3).

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 presentation.
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Revolving Line of Credit

The Company has had a working capital line of credit with its primary lender, Silicon Valley Bank, since 2004. The revolving line of credit is secured
by substantially all of the Company’s assets. The maximum available under the line is $10.0 million subject to the value of collateralized assets. The
Company is required under the revolving line of credit to maintain its primary operating account and the majority of its cash and investment balances in
accounts with its primary lender. The facility was amended on March 27, 2015, extending the maturity date to March 31, 2018 and on May 10, 2016, the
Company and the primary lender agreed to modify certain financial covenants. The amended agreement requires the Company to maintain a liquidity ratio
greater than 1.50:1.00, excluding certain short term advances from the calculation, and a minimum tangible net worth of not less than (no worse than)
negative $24.0 million for the quarters ended June 30, 2016, September 30, 2016, December 31, 2016, March 31, 2017, June 30, 2017, and September 30,
2017; and not less than (no worse than) negative $24.5 million for the quarters ended December 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018.

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had $3.0 million outstanding under the revolving line of credit. Draws on the line of credit are made based on the
borrowing capacity one week in arrears. As of June 30, 2016, the Company had a borrowing capacity of $4.0 million based on the Company’s collateralized
assets, including amounts already drawn. As such, the Company has the ability to borrow an additional $1.0 million under the revolving line of credit at
June 30, 2016. The Company’s total liquidity as of June 30, 2016, was $4.9 million which included cash and cash equivalents of $3.9 million. The $3.0
million outstanding under the revolving line of credit was repaid shortly after June 30, 2016.

Healthcare Royalty Partners Debt

In November 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Healthcare Royalty Partners. Under the agreement the Company borrowed from
Healthcare Royalty Partners $15 million. The Company was permitted to borrow up to an additional $5 million in the aggregate based on the achievement by
the Company of certain milestones related to Niobe ES system sales in 2012. On August 8, 2012, the Company borrowed an additional $2.5 million based
upon achievement of a milestone related to Niobe ES system sales for the three months ended June 30, 2012. On January 31, 2013, the Company borrowed an
additional $2.5 million based upon achievement of a milestone related to Niobe ES system sales for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012. The loan
will be repaid through, and secured by, royalties payable to the Company under its Development, Alliance and Supply Agreement with Biosense Webster, Inc.
(the “Biosense Agreement”). The Biosense Agreement relates to the development and distribution of magnetically enabled catheters used with Stereotaxis’
Niobe ES system in cardiac ablation procedures. Under the terms of the agreement, Healthcare Royalty Partners will be entitled to receive 100% of all
royalties due to the Company under the Biosense Agreement until the loan is repaid. The loan is a full recourse loan, matures on December 31, 2018, and
bears interest at an annual rate of 16% payable quarterly with royalties received under the Biosense Agreement. If the payments received by the Company
under the Biosense Agreement are insufficient to pay all amounts of interest due on the loan, then such deficiency will increase the outstanding principal
amount on the loan. After the loan obligation is repaid, the royalties under the Biosense Agreement will again be paid to the Company. The loan is also
secured by certain assets and intellectual property of the Company. The agreement also contains customary affirmative and negative covenants. The use of
payments due to the Company under the Biosense Agreement was approved by our primary lender.

10. Stockholders’ Equity

The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held and to receive dividends whenever funds are legally available and when
declared by the Board of Directors subject to the prior rights of holders of all classes of stock having priority rights as dividends and the conditions of the
revolving line of credit agreement. Since the Company’s inception, no dividends have been declared or paid.

Controlled Equity Offering

The Company entered into a Controlled Equity OfferingSM sales agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) in May 2014, as amended on March 26, 2015,
with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (“Cantor”), as agent and/or principal, pursuant to which the Company could issue and sell, from time to time, shares of its
common stock having an aggregate gross sales price of up to $18.0 million. The Company will pay Cantor a commission of 3.0% of the gross proceeds from
any common stock sold through the Sales Agreement.

There were no proceeds from the Controlled Equity Offering during the three months ended June 30, 2016. As of June 30, 2016, $13.8 million of
common stock remained available to be sold under this facility, subject to certain conditions as specified in the Sales Agreement. Due to the Company’s
transfer to the OTCQX® Best Market on August 4, 2016, the Company’s ability to generate proceeds from the sale of stock under the Controlled Equity
Offering in the future may be limited or prohibited.

Offerings of Common Stock

On October 8, 2015 the Company announced the results of its previously announced offering of transferable subscription warrants (the “Warrants
Offering) to holders of record of the Company’s common stock. Pursuant to the Warrants Offering, subscription warrants to purchase 267,256 shares of
common stock were exercised, resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of $293,982.
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Stock Award Plans

The Company has various stock plans that permit the Company to provide incentives to employees and directors of the Company in the form of equity
compensation. In August 2012, the Board of Directors adopted the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) which was subsequently approved by the
Company’s shareholders. This plan replaced the 2002 Stock Incentive Plan which expired on March 25, 2012.

On June 5, 2013, June 10, 2014, and on May 24, 2016 the shareholders approved amendments to the Plan, which were previously approved and
adopted by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. Under each of the amendments on June 5, 2013 and June 10, 2014, the
number of shares authorized for issuance under the Plan was increased by one million shares. The amendment on May 24, 2016 increased the number of
shares authorized for issuance under the Plan by 1.5 million shares. At June 30, 2016, the Company had 1,508,565 remaining shares of the Company’s
common stock to provide for current and future grants under its various equity plans.

At June 30, 2016, the total compensation cost related to options, stock appreciation rights and non-vested stock granted to employees under the
Company’s stock award plans but not yet recognized was approximately $1.9 million, net of estimated forfeitures of approximately $0.9 million. This cost
will be amortized over a period of up to four years over the underlying estimated service periods and will be adjusted for subsequent changes in estimated
forfeitures and anticipated vesting periods.

A summary of the option and stock appreciation rights activity for the six month period ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:
 

   
Number of

Options/SARs   
Range of

Exercise Price   
Weighted Average Exercise

Price per Share  
Outstanding, December 31, 2015    706,494    $1.45 - $116.40  $ 9.34  
Granted    1,000   $1.55   $ 1.55  
Exercised    —      —     —    
Forfeited    (21,111)   $1.74 - $99.00   $ 30.82  

    
 

      
 

Outstanding, June 30, 2016    686,383    $1.45 - $116.40  $ 8.66  
    

 

      

 

A summary of the restricted stock unit activity for the six month period ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:
 

  
Number of Restricted

Stock Units   
Weighted Average Grant Date

Fair Value per Unit  
Outstanding, December 31, 2015   752,008   $ 2.63  
Granted   791,600   $ 0.84  
Vested   (274,850)  $ 2.56  
Forfeited   (56,262)  $ 1.49  

   
 

   
 

Outstanding, June 30, 2016   1,212,496   $ 1.53  
   

 

   

 

11. Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, including cash equivalents and warrants. General
accounting principles for fair value measurement established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities (“Level 1”) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (“Level 3”). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:
 

 Level 1: Values are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted
assets or liabilities.

 

 Level 2: Values are based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are not active, or other model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market.

 

 Level 3: Values are generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not observable in the market.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy.
As required by the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the Accounting Standards Codification, assets and liabilities are classified in their
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
 

   Fair Value Measurement Using  

   Total    

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Instruments

(Level 1)    

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)    

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)  

Assets at June 30, 2016:         
Cash equivalents   $ 74,346     74,346     —       —    

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total assets at fair value   $ 74,346     74,346     —       —    
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Liabilities at June 30, 2016:         
Warrants issued May 2012   $209,156     —       —       209,156  
Warrants issued August 2013   $418,310     —       —       418,310  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total liabilities at fair value:   $627,466     —       —       627,466  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Assets at December 31, 2015:         
Cash equivalents   $524,083     524,083     —       —    

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total assets at fair value   $524,083     524,083     —       —    
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Liabilities at December 31, 2015:         
Warrants issued May 2012   $143,681     —       —       143,681  
Warrants issued August 2013   $650,449     —       —       650,449  

    
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Total liabilities at fair value:   $794,130     —       —       794,130  
    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

Level 1

The Company’s financial assets consist of cash equivalents invested in money market funds in the amount of $74,346 and $524,083 at June 30, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively. These assets are classified as Level 1 as described above and total interest income recorded for these investments was
insignificant during both the six month periods ended June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015. There were no transfers in or out of Level 1 during the period ended
June 30, 2016.

Level 2

The Company does not have any financial assets or liabilities classified as Level 2.

Level 3

In conjunction with the Company’s May 2012 and August 2013 financing transactions, the Company issued warrants to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock. Due to the provisions included in the warrant agreements, the warrants did not meet the exemptions for equity classification and
as such, the Company accounts for these warrants as derivative instruments. The calculated fair value of the warrants is classified as a liability and is
periodically re-measured with any changes in value recognized in “Other expense” in the Statements of Operations.

The remaining warrants from the May 2012 transaction expire in May 2018 and were revalued as of June 30, 2016 using the following assumptions: 1)
volatility of 124.33%; 2) risk-free interest rate of 0.58%; and 3) a closing stock price of $0.98.

The remaining warrants from the August 2013 expire in November 2018 and were revalued as of June 30, 2016 using the following assumptions: 1)
volatility of 113.17%; 2) risk-free interest rate of 0.58%; and 3) a closing stock price of $0.98.

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s warrants is volatility. Significant increases (decreases) in the
volatility in isolation would result in significantly higher (lower) liability fair value measurements.
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The following table sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Company’s Level 3 financial liabilities for the six month period ended
June 30, 2016:
 

   
Warrants issued May

2012    
Warrants issued August

2013    Total Liabilities 
Balance at beginning of period   $ 143,681    $ 650,449    $ 794,130  

Issues    —       —       —    
Settlements    —       —       —    
Revaluation    65,475     (232,139)    (166,664) 

    
 

    
 

    
 

Balance at end of period   $ 209,156    $ 418,310    $ 627,466  
    

 

    

 

    

 

The Company currently does not have derivative instruments to manage its exposure to currency fluctuations or other business risks. The Company
evaluates all of its financial instruments to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain features that qualify as embedded derivatives. All
derivative financial instruments are recognized in the balance sheet at fair value.

12. Product Warranty Provisions

The Company’s standard policy is to warrant all Niobe, Odyssey, and Vdrive systems against defects in material or workmanship for one year following
installation. The Company’s estimate of costs to service the warranty obligations is based on historical experience and current product performance trends. A
regular review of warranty obligations is performed to determine the adequacy of the reserve and adjustments are made to the estimated warranty liability as
appropriate.

Accrued warranty, which is included in other accrued liabilities, consists of the following:
 

   June 30, 2016   December 31, 2015 
Warranty accrual, beginning of the fiscal period   $ 316,835    $ 364,548  
Accrual adjustment for product warranty    48,064     171,384  
Payments made    (106,449)    (219,097) 

    
 

    
 

Warranty accrual, end of the fiscal period   $ 258,450    $ 316,835  
    

 

    

 

13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company at times becomes a party to claims in the ordinary course of business. Management believes that the ultimate resolution of pending or
threatened proceedings will not have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations or liquidity of the Company.

14. Subsequent Events

On August 2, 2016, Stereotaxis, Inc. (the “Company”) received a determination letter from the Nasdaq Hearings Panel (the “Panel”) notifying the
Company that its common stock would be delisted from The Nasdaq Capital Market (“Nasdaq”) and that suspension of trading in the shares would be
effective at the open of business on August 4, 2016. The determination letter also indicated that Nasdaq would complete the delisting by filing a Form 25
Notification of Delisting with the Securities Exchange Commission, after applicable appeal periods have lapsed. The Panel made the determination to delist
the Company’s common stock because the Company did not demonstrate compliance with the minimum $35 million market value of listed securities
requirement for a period of ten consecutive trading days by August 1, 2016, as required by a decision previously issued by the Panel on May 2, 2016. The
Company’s shares of common stock commenced trading on the OTCQX® Best Market on August 4, 2016 under the Company’s current ticker symbol of
“STXS.”
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and notes thereto included in this report on Form 10-
Q and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. Operating results are not necessarily indicative of results that may occur
in future periods.

This report includes various forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth in “Item 1A.
Risk Factors”. Forward-looking statements discuss matters that are not historical facts. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to,
discussions regarding our operating strategy, sales and marketing strategy, regulatory strategy, industry, economic conditions, financial condition, liquidity,
capital resources, and results of operations. Such statements include, but are not limited to, statements preceded by, followed by, or that otherwise include the
words “believe”, “expects”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “estimates”, “projects”, “can”, “could”, “may”, “would”, or similar expressions. For those
statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You
should not unduly rely on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date on which they are made. They give our expectations regarding the
future, but are not guarantees. We undertake no obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise, unless required by law.

Overview

Stereotaxis designs, manufactures, and markets the Epoch® Solution, an advanced cardiology instrument-control system for use in a hospital’s
interventional surgical suite, to enhance the treatment of arrhythmias and coronary artery disease. The Epoch Solution is comprised of the Niobe® ES system,
Odyssey® solution, and the Vdrive® system. We believe that the Epoch Solution represents a revolutionary technology in the interventional surgical suite, or
“interventional lab” and has the potential to become the standard of care for a broad range of complex cardiology procedures. We also believe that our
technology represents an important advance in the ongoing trend toward digital instrumentation in the interventional lab and provides substantial, clinically-
important improvements and cost efficiencies over manual interventional methods, which require years of physician training and often result in long and
unpredictable procedure times and sub-optimal therapeutic outcomes.

The Niobe ES system is designed to enable physicians to complete more complex interventional procedures by providing image-guided delivery of
catheters and guidewires through the blood vessels and chambers of the heart to treatment sites. This is achieved using externally applied magnetic fields that
govern the motion of the working tip of the catheter or guidewire, resulting in improved navigation, efficient procedures, and reduced X-ray exposure.

Stereotaxis also has developed the Odyssey Solution, which consolidates all lab information enabling doctors to focus on the patient for optimal
procedure efficiency. The system also features a remote viewing and recording capability called Odyssey Cinema, an innovative solution delivering
synchronized content for optimized workflow, advanced care, and improved productivity. This tool includes an archiving capability that allows clinicians to
store and replay entire procedures or segments of procedures. This information can be accessed from locations throughout the hospital’s local area network
and over the global Odyssey Network, providing physicians with a tool for clinical collaboration, remote consultation, and training. The Odyssey Solution
may be acquired, in conjunction with a Niobe ES system or on a stand-alone basis, for installation in interventional labs and other locations where clinicians
often desire the benefits of the Odyssey Solution that we believe can improve clinical workflows and related efficiencies.

Our Vdrive system provides navigation and stability for diagnostic and therapeutic devices designed to improve interventional procedures. The Vdrive
system complements the Niobe ES system’s control of therapeutic catheters for fully remote procedures and enables single-operator workflow. It is sold as
two options, the Vdrive system and the Vdrive Duo system. In addition to the Vdrive system and the Vdrive Duo system, we also manufacture and market
various disposable components (V-Loop, V-Sono, V-CAS, and V-CAS Deflect) which can be manipulated by these systems.

We generate revenue from both the initial capital sale of the Niobe, Odyssey, and Vdrive systems as well as recurring revenue from the sale of our
proprietary disposable devices, from ongoing license and service contracts, and from royalties paid to the Company by Biosense Webster for the sale of co-
developed catheters. We market our products to a broad base of hospitals in the United States and internationally. As of June 30, 2016, the Company has an
installed base of 129 Niobe ES systems.
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The core components of Stereotaxis’ systems have received regulatory clearance in the United States, European Union, Canada, China, Japan, and
elsewhere. We have received regulatory clearance, licensing and/or CE Mark approvals necessary for us to market the Vdrive and Vdrive Duo systems with
the V-CAS, V-Loop and V-Sono devices in the U.S., Canada and European Union. The V-CAS Deflect catheter advancement system has been CE Marked for
sale in the European Union. We have received Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) clearance and the CE Mark necessary for us to market our suite of
Pegasus™ coronary peripheral guidewires in the United States and Europe.

Since our inception, we have generated significant losses. As of June 30, 2016, we have incurred cumulative net losses of approximately $470.6
million. In 2016, the Company plans to continue developing the Niobe ES system with the goal of furthering clinical adoption and new system placements.
We expect to incur additional losses in 2016 as we continue the development and commercialization of our products, conduct our research and development
activities, advance new products into clinical development from our existing research programs and fund additional sales and marketing initiatives. During
2016, we will continue to monitor operating expenses and make additional investments in certain targeted areas.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures. We review our estimates and judgments on an on-going
basis. We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. We believe the following accounting policies are critical to the judgments and estimates we use
in preparing our financial statements. For a complete listing of our critical accounting policies, please refer to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2015.

Revenue Recognition

The Company accounts for revenue using Accounting Standards Codification Topic 605-25, Multiple-Element Arrangements (“ASC 605-25”).

ASC 605-25 permits management to estimate the selling price of undelivered components of a bundled sale for which it is unable to establish vendor-
specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) or third-party evidence (“TPE”). This requires management to record revenue for certain elements of a transaction even
though it might not have delivered other elements of the transaction, for which it was unable to meet the requirements for establishing VSOE or TPE. The
Company believes that the guidance significantly improves the reporting of these types of transactions to more closely reflect the underlying economic
circumstances. This guidance also prohibits the use of the residual method for allocating revenue to the various elements of a transaction and requires that the
revenue be allocated proportionally based on the relative estimated selling prices.

Under our revenue recognition policy, a portion of revenue for Niobe systems, Vdrive systems and certain Odyssey systems is recognized upon delivery,
provided that title has passed, there are no uncertainties regarding acceptance, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the sales price is fixed and
determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. Revenue is recognized for other types of Odyssey systems upon completion of
installation, since there are no qualified third party installers. When installation is the responsibility of the customer, revenue from system sales is recognized
upon shipment since these arrangements do not include an installation element or right of return privileges. The Company does not recognize revenue in
situations in which inventory remains at a Stereotaxis warehouse or in situations in which title and risk of loss have not transferred to the customer. Amounts
collected prior to satisfying the above revenue recognition criteria are reflected as deferred revenue. Revenue from services and license fees, whether sold
individually or as a separate unit of accounting in a multiple-deliverable arrangement, is deferred and amortized over the service or license fee period, which
is typically one year. Revenue from services is derived primarily from the sale of annual product maintenance plans. We recognize revenue from disposable
device sales or accessories upon shipment and establish an appropriate reserve for returns. The return reserve, which is applicable only to disposable devices,
is estimated based on historical experience which is periodically reviewed and updated as necessary. In the past, changes in estimate have had only a de
minimis effect on revenue recognized in the period. We believe that the estimate is not likely to change significantly in the future.

Costs of systems revenue include direct product costs, installation labor and other costs, estimated warranty costs, and initial training and product
maintenance costs. These costs are recorded at the time of sale. Costs of disposable revenue include direct product costs and estimated warranty costs and are
recorded at the time of sale. Cost of revenue from services and license fees are recorded when incurred.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Revenue. Revenue decreased from $9.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 to $7.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016, a
decrease of 19%. Revenue from the sale of systems decreased from $3.1 million to $0.9 million, a decrease of approximately 70%, primarily due to
decreased system sales volumes across the Niobe, Odyssey, and Vdrive product lines. We recognized revenue of $0.3 million for Niobe system installations,
$0.5 million for Odyssey and Odyssey Cinema systems, and $0.1 million for Vdrive system installations during the 2016 period. System revenue for the prior
period included two Niobe systems, a total $1.0 million for Odyssey and Odyssey Cinema systems, and $0.2 million for Vdrive systems. Revenue from sales
of disposable interventional devices, service and accessories increased to $6.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 from $6.6 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of approximately 6% primarily driven by increased disposable sales volumes.

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue decreased to $1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 from $2.9 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2015. As a percentage of our total revenue, overall gross margin increased to 86% for the three months ended June 30, 2016 from 70% for the three
months ended June 30, 2015 due to a shift in mix from systems revenue to disposables, service and accessories revenue. Cost of revenue for systems sold
decreased from $1.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 to $0.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016, driven by decreased system
sales volumes across the Niobe, Odyssey, and Vdrive product lines. Gross margin for systems increased to 58% for the three months ended June 30, 2016
from 40% for the three months ended June 30, 2015 due to a change in product mix. Cost of revenue for disposables, service and accessories decreased to
$0.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 from $1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015, due to lower expenses incurred under
service contracts in the current year period. Gross margin for disposables, service and accessories was 90% for the current quarter compared to 83% for the
three months ended June 30, 2015.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses have remained relatively consistent with the three months ended June 30,
2015 at $1.4 million.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses decreased slightly from $4.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 to $4.2
million for the three months ended June 30, 2016.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses include regulatory, clinical, finance, information systems, legal, general
management and routine training expenses. General and administrative expenses have remained relatively consistent with the three months ended June 30,
2015 at $2.8 million.

Other Income. Other income represents the non-cash change in market value of certain warrants classified as a derivative and recorded as a current
liability under general accounting principles for determining whether an instrument (or embedded feature) is indexed to an entity’s own stock.

Interest Expense. Interest expense has remained relatively consistent with the three months ended June 30, 2015 at $0.8 million.

Comparison of the Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Revenue. Revenue decreased from $19.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 to $16.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016, a
decrease of approximately 14%. Revenue from the sale of systems decreased from $5.9 million to $3.0 million, a decrease of approximately 49%, primarily
due to decreased sales volumes across the Niobe, Odyssey, and Vdrive product lines. We recognized revenue on one Niobe system, a total of $1.4 million on
Odyssey and Odyssey Cinema systems, and a total of $0.1 million on Vdrive system installations during the 2016 period. System revenue for the prior year
period included four Niobe systems, a total of $1.5 million on Odyssey and Odyssey systems, and $0.5 million for Vdrive systems during the 2015 period.
Revenue from sales of disposable interventional devices, service and accessories increased to $13.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 from
$13.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015, an increase of approximately 2% due to higher service revenue in the current year.

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue decreased from $5.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 to $3.3 million for the six months ended June 30,
2016, a decrease of approximately 41%. As a percentage of our total revenue, overall gross margin increased to 80% for the six months ended June 30, 2016
compared to 71% during the same six month period of the prior year due to a shift in mix from system revenue to disposable, service and accessory revenue.
Cost of revenue for systems sold decreased from $3.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 to $1.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016,
an decrease of approximately 54%, primarily due to decreased system sales volumes across Niobe, Odyssey, and Vdrive product lines. Gross margin for
systems increased from 45% for the six months ended June 30, 2015 to 51% for the six months ended June 30, 2016. Cost of revenue for disposables, service
and accessories decreased to $1.8 million during the 2016 period from $2.3 million during the 2015 period, resulting in an increase in gross margin to 87%
from 82% between these periods driven by lower expenses incurred under service contracts in the current year period.
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Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses have remained relatively consistent with the six months ended June 30,
2015 at $2.9 million.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses decreased from $8.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 to $8.1 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2016, a decrease of approximately 2%. This decrease was due to decreased headcount expenses and third party commissions in
the current year period.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses include regulatory, clinical, finance, information systems, legal, general
management and training expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased to $5.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 from $5.6 million
for the six months ended June 30, 2015, a decrease of 3%. This decrease was primarily driven by lower headcount costs and changes in foreign currency.

Other Income. Other income represents the change in market value of certain warrants classified as a derivative and recorded as a current liability under
general accounting principles for determining whether an instrument (or embedded feature) is indexed to an entity’s own stock. The primary drivers of
fluctuations in this balance are changes in the Company’s stock price from one period to the next.

Interest Expense. Interest expense remained relatively consistent with the six months ended June 30, 2015 at $1.6 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity refers to the liquid financial assets available to fund our business operations and pay for near-term obligations. These liquid financial assets
consist of cash and cash equivalents. At June 30, 2016 we had $3.9 million of cash and equivalents. We had a working capital deficit of $4.1 million and
working capital of $1.0 million as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The decrease in the working capital is due principally to the net
losses incurred for the first six months of 2016.

The following table summarizes our cash flow by operating, investing and financing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in
thousands):
 

   Six Months Ended June 30,  
   2016    2015  
Cash flow used in operating activities   $ (4,609)   $ (4,204) 
Cash flow used in investing activities    —       (52) 
Cash flow provided by financing activities    2,874     615  

Net cash used in operating activities. We used approximately $4.6 million and $4.2 million of cash for operating activities during the six months ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The increase in cash used in operating activities was primarily driven by changes in working capital.

Net cash used in investing activities. There were no purchases of equipment for the six month period ended June 30, 2016 and we used less than $0.1
million during the six month period ended June 30, 2015 for the purchase of equipment.

Net cash provided by financing activities. We generated approximately $2.9 million of cash for the six month period ended June 30, 2016 compared to
$0.6 million generated for the six month period ended June 30, 2015. The increase in cash generated for the period ended June 30, 2016 was driven by
borrowings against our revolving line of credit. The cash generated for the period ended June 30, 2015 was driven by proceeds from stock issued through the
Controlled Equity Offering.

We may be required to raise capital or pursue other financing strategies to continue our operations. Until we can generate significant cash flow from our
operations, we expect to continue to fund our operations with cash resources primarily generated from the proceeds of our past and future public offerings,
private sales of our equity securities, and loans collateralized by working capital and equipment. We continue to explore financing alternatives, which may
include the sale of equity securities or non-core assets, strategic collaboration agreements, debt financings or distribution rights. We cannot accurately predict
the timing and amount of our utilization of capital, which will depend on a number of factors outside of our control.

Our existing cash, cash equivalents and borrowing facilities may not be sufficient to fund our operating expenses and capital equipment requirements
through the next 12 months, which would require us to obtain additional financing before that time. We cannot assure that additional financing will be
available on a timely basis on terms acceptable to us or at all, or that such financing will not be dilutive to our stockholders. If adequate funds are not
available to us, we could be required to delay development or commercialization of new products, to license to third parties the rights to commercialize
products or technologies that we would otherwise seek to commercialize ourselves or to reduce the sales, marketing, customer support or other resources
devoted to our products, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we could
be required to cease operations.
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Capital Resources

As of June 30, 2016, our borrowing facilities were comprised of a revolving line of credit maintained with our primary lender, Silicon Valley Bank, as
well as the Healthcare Royalty Partners debt discussed in the following sections.

Revolving Line of Credit

The Company has had a working capital line of credit with its primary lender, Silicon Valley Bank, since 2004. The revolving line of credit is secured
by substantially all of the Company’s assets. The maximum available under the line is $10.0 million subject to the value of collateralized assets. The
Company is required under the revolving line of credit to maintain its primary operating account and the majority of its cash and investment balances in
accounts with its primary lender. The facility was amended on March 27, 2015, extending the maturity date to March 31, 2018 and on May 10, 2016, the
Company and the primary lender agreed to modify certain financial covenants. The amended agreement requires the Company to maintain a liquidity ratio
greater than 1.50:1.00, excluding certain short term advances from the calculation, and a minimum tangible net worth of not less than (no worse than)
negative $24.0 million for the quarters ended June 30, 2016, September 30, 2016, December 31, 2016, March 31, 2017, June 30, 2017, and September 30,
2017; and not less than (no worse than) negative $24.5 million for the quarters ended December 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018.

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had $3.0 million outstanding under the revolving line of credit. Draws on the line of credit are made based on the
borrowing capacity one week in arrears. As of June 30, 2016, the Company had a borrowing capacity of $4.0 million based on the Company’s collateralized
assets, including amounts already drawn. As such, the Company has the ability to borrow an additional $1.0 million under the revolving line of credit at
June 30, 2016. The Company’s total liquidity as of June 30, 2016, was $4.9 million which included cash and cash equivalents of $3.9 million. The $3.0
million outstanding under the revolving line of credit was repaid shortly after June 30, 2016.

Healthcare Royalty Partners Debt

In November 2011, we entered into a loan agreement with Healthcare Royalty Partners. Under the agreement the Company borrowed from Healthcare
Royalty Partners $15 million. The Company was permitted to borrow up to an additional $5 million in the aggregate based on the achievement by the
Company of certain milestones related to Niobe ES system sales in 2012. On August 8, 2012, the Company borrowed an additional $2.5 million based upon
achievement of a milestone related to Niobe ES system sales for the three months ended June 30, 2012. On January 31, 2013, the Company borrowed an
additional $2.5 million based upon achievement of a milestone related to Niobe ES system sales for the twelve months ended December 31, 2012. The loan
will be repaid through, and secured by, royalties payable to the Company under its Development, Alliance and Supply Agreement with Biosense Webster, Inc.
(the “Biosense Agreement”). The Biosense Agreement relates to the development and distribution of magnetically enabled catheters used with Stereotaxis’
Niobe ES system in cardiac ablation procedures. Under the terms of the agreement, Healthcare Royalty Partners will be entitled to receive 100% of all
royalties due to the Company under the Biosense Agreement until the loan is repaid. The loan is a full recourse loan, matures on December 31, 2018, and
bears interest at an annual rate of 16% payable quarterly with royalties received under the Biosense Agreement. If the payments received by the Company
under the Biosense Agreement are insufficient to pay all amounts of interest due on the loan, then such deficiency will increase the outstanding principal
amount on the loan. After the loan obligation is repaid, royalties under the Biosense Agreement will again be paid to the Company. The loan is also secured
by certain assets and intellectual property of the Company. The agreement also contains customary affirmative and negative covenants. The use of payments
due to the Company under the Biosense Agreement was approved by our primary lender.

Common Stock

The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held and to receive dividends whenever funds are legally available and when
declared by the Board of Directors subject to the prior rights of holders of all classes of stock having priority rights as dividends and the conditions of the
revolving line of credit agreement. No dividends have been declared or paid as of June 30, 2016.

Controlled Equity Offering

The Company entered into a Controlled Equity OfferingSM sales agreement (the “Sales Agreement”) in May 2014, as amended on March 26, 2015,
with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co. (“Cantor”), as agent and/or principal, pursuant to which the Company could issue and sell, from time to time, shares of its
common stock having an aggregate gross sales price of up to $18.0 million. The Company will pay Cantor a commission of 3.0% of the gross proceeds from
any common stock sold through the Sales Agreement.
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There were no proceeds from the Controlled Equity Offering during the three months ended June 30, 2016. As of June 30, 2016, $13.8 million of
common stock remained available to be sold under this facility, subject to certain conditions as specified in the Sales Agreement. Due to the Company’s
transfer to the OTCQX® Best Market on August 4, 2016, the Company’s ability to generate proceeds from the sale of stock under the Controlled Equity
Offering in the future may be limited or prohibited.

Offerings of Common Stock

On October 8, 2015 the Company announced the results of its previously announced offering of transferable subscription warrants (the “Warrants
Offering) to holders of record of the Company’s common stock. Pursuant to the Warrants Offering, subscription warrants to purchase 267,256 shares of
common stock were exercised, resulting in gross proceeds to the Company of $293,982.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently have, nor have we ever had, any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred
to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we do not engage in trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, we are not
materially exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could have arisen if we had engaged in these relationships.

 
ITEM 3. [RESERVED]

None.

 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures: The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is
required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, also conducted an evaluation of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting to determine whether any changes
occurred during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Based on that evaluation, there has been no such change during the period covered by this report.
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved from time to time in various lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business. Although the outcomes of these lawsuits and
claims are uncertain, we do not believe any of them will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

On August 4, 2016, trading in our common stock on The Nasdaq Capital Market was suspended as a result of a determination from Nasdaq to delist our
common stock. On August 4, 2016, shares of our common stock commenced trading on the OTCQX® Best Market. Trading of our shares on the over-the-
counter markets could negatively impact the liquidity of our common stock and our ability to access the capital markets, which could impair the value of your
investment.

On August 2, 2016, we received a determination letter from the Nasdaq Hearings Panel (the “Panel”) notifying us that our common stock would be
delisted from The Nasdaq Capital Market (“Nasdaq”) and that suspension of trading in the shares would be effective at the open of business on August 4,
2016. The determination letter also indicated that Nasdaq would complete the delisting by filing a Form 25 Notification of Delisting with the Securities
Exchange Commission, after applicable appeal periods have lapsed. The Panel made the determination to delist our common stock because we did not
demonstrate compliance with the minimum $35 million market value of listed securities requirement for a period of ten consecutive trading days by August 1,
2016, as required by a decision previously issued by the Panel on May 2, 2016. Our shares of common stock commenced trading on the OTCQX® Best
Market on August 4, 2016 under the Company’s existing ticker symbol of “STXS.”

The delisting of our common stock from The Nasdaq Capital Market could have negative consequences, including the potential loss of confidence by
suppliers, customers and employees, the loss of investor interest and fewer business development opportunities. The trading of our common stock on the
over-the-counter market, including the OTCQX, may adversely affect the market liquidity of our common stock, limit or prohibit the use of our Controlled
Equity Offering program, limit our ability to issue additional securities (including pursuant to registration statements on Form S-3) and adversely affect our
ability to obtain financing for the continuation of our operations, which could harm our business or cause us to cease operations.

Furthermore, we can provide no assurance that our common stock will continue to trade on the OTCQX® Best Market in the future, whether broker-
dealers will continue to agree to provide public quotes of our common stock on this market, or whether the trading volume of our common stock will be
sufficient to provide for an efficient trading market. Any such developments could impair the value of your investment.

Additional Risk Factors are discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None.

 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

 
ITEM 4. [RESERVED]

None.

 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibits: See Exhibit Index herein
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STEREOTAXIS, INC.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

  
STEREOTAXIS, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: August 10, 2016   By: /s/ William C. Mills III

   
William C. Mills III,
Chief Executive Officer

 

Date: August 10, 2016   By: /s/ Martin C. Stammer

   
Martin C. Stammer,
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 

Number   Description

    3.1
  

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (file No. 000-
50884) for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2004.

    3.2
  

Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 000-50884) filed on July 10, 2012.

    3.3
  

Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50884) for the fiscal
quarter ended September 30, 2004.

  10.1

  

Eleventh Loan Modification Agreement (Domestic), dated May 10, 2016, between the Company, Stereotaxis International, Inc., and Silicon
Valley Bank, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Form 10-Q (file No. 001-36159) for the fiscal quarter ended March
31, 2016.

  10.2   Amended and restated Stereotaxis, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan, as adopted February 9, 2016, filed herewith.

  31.1   Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed by Chief Executive Officer).

  31.2   Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification (pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed by Chief Financial Officer).

  32.1   Section 1350 Certification (pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed by Chief Executive Officer).

  32.2   Section 1350 Certification (pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, executed by Chief Financial Officer).

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
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Exhibit 10.2

STEREOTAXIS, INC.
2012 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

As amended and restated effective February 9, 2016

1. Purpose of the Plan.

The purpose of the Plan is to provide the Company with a means to assist in recruiting, retaining, and rewarding certain employees, directors,
consultants, and other individuals providing services to the Company and to motivate such individuals to exert their best efforts on behalf of the Company by
providing incentives through the granting of Awards. By granting Awards to such individuals, the Company expects that the interests of the recipients will be
better aligned with those of the Company by providing recipients with a proprietary interest in the growth and performance of the Company.

2. Definitions. Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

A. “Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor thereto.

B. “Award” means a grant under the Plan of an Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Cash-Based Award or Other Stock-Based Award.

C. “Award Agreement” means the document (in written or electronic form) communicating the terms, conditions and limitations applicable to an Award. The
Committee may, in its discretion, require that the Participant execute such Award Agreement, or may provide for procedures through which Award
Agreements are made available but not executed. Any Participant who is granted an Award and who does not affirmatively reject the applicable Award
Agreement shall be deemed to have accepted the terms of Award as embodied in the Award Agreement.

D. “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

E. “Cash-Based Award” means an Award described in Section 7 as a Cash-Based Award.

F. “Change of Control” means the occurrence of one or more of the following:

(1) The purchase or other acquisition (other than from the Company) by any person, entity or group of persons, within the meaning of Section 13(d) or
14(d) of the Act (excluding, for this purpose, the Company or its subsidiaries or any employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries), of beneficial
ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Act) of 35% or more of either the then-outstanding shares of common stock of the
Company or the combined voting power of the Company’s then-outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors;

(2) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board (as of the date hereof, the “Incumbent Board”) cease for any reason to constitute at least
a majority of the Board, provided
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that any person who becomes a director subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s shareholders, was
approved by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Incumbent Board (other than an individual whose initial assumption of office is
in connection with an actual or threatened election contest relating to the election of directors of the Company, as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of
Regulation 14A promulgated under the Act) shall be, for purposes of this section, considered as though such person were a member of the Incumbent Board;
or

(3) The consummation of a reorganization, merger or consolidation, in each case with respect to which persons who were the stockholders of the
Company immediately prior to such reorganization, merger or consolidation do not, immediately thereafter, own more than 50% of, respectively, the common
stock and the combined voting power entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the reorganized, merged or consolidated corporation’s then-
outstanding voting securities, or of a liquidation or dissolution of the Company or of the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change of Control shall not be deemed to have occurred with respect to any Award that (i) provides “non-qualified deferred
compensation” within the meaning of Code Section 409A and (ii) settles upon a Change of Control, unless such foregoing event constitutes a “change in
ownership” of the Company, a “change in effective control” of the Company, or a “change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets” of the
Company in each case, as defined under Code Section 409A.

G. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any successor thereto, and the regulations and other guidance promulgated thereunder.

H. “Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board, and any successor committee thereto or such other committee of the Board as may be
designated by the Board to administer this Plan in whole or in part including any subcommittee of the Board as designated by the Board.

I. “Company” means Stereotaxis, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and any successor thereto.

J. “Employer” means the Company and any other entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, the Company or any
other entity designated by the Board or the Committee in which the Company has an interest. The term “control” (including the terms “controlling”,
“controlled by” and “under common control with”) has the meaning ascribed to it under Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor
thereto, and the regulations and other guidance promulgated thereunder.

K. “Fair Market Value” means the closing sale price, regular way, or, in case no such sale takes place on such date, the average of the closing bid and asked
prices, regular way, on the date such Fair Market Value is measured of one share of Stock as reported in the principal consolidated transaction reporting
system with respect to securities listed or admitted to trading on the Nasdaq Global Market or, if the shares of Stock are not listed or admitted to trading on
the Nasdaq Global Market, as reported in the principal consolidated transaction reporting system with respect to securities listed on the principal national
securities exchange on which the shares of Stock are listed or admitted to trading or, if the shares of Stock are not listed or admitted to trading on any national
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securities exchange, the last quoted sale price on such date or, if not so quoted, the average of the high bid and low asked prices in the over-the-counter
market on such date, as reported by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Automated Quotations System or such other system then in use. If
shares of Stock are not publicly held or so listed or publicly traded, the Fair Market Value per share of Stock shall be 100% of the fair market value of a share
of Stock on the date such Fair Market Value is measured, as determined in good faith by the Committee.

L. “Incentive Stock Option” means a stock option which is intended to be an incentive stock option within the meaning of Code Section 422.

M. “Non-Qualified Stock Option” means a stock option which is not an Incentive Stock Option.

N. “Option” means both an Incentive Stock Option and a Non-Qualified Stock Option.

O. “Other Stock-Based Award” means an Award granted pursuant to Section 7 and described as an Other Stock-Based Award.

P. “Parent” means any corporation (other than the Company) in an unbroken chain of corporations ending with the Company if, at the time of the granting of
the Option, each of the corporations other than the Company owns stock possessing 50% or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock in
one of the other corporations in such chain, or such other meaning as may be hereafter ascribed to it in Code Section 424.

Q. “Participant” means any director or any employee of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries (including subsidiaries of subsidiaries), or any other entity in
which the Company has a significant equity or other interest, as determined by the Committee, as well as any individual providing services to the Company
who is selected to receive an Award; provided, that Incentive Stock Options may only be granted to employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

R. “Plan” means the Stereotaxis, Inc. 2012 Stock Incentive Plan.

S. “Stock” means the common stock, par value of $0.001 per share, of the Company.

T. “Stock Appreciation Right” means a stock appreciation right described in Section 6.

U. “Subsidiary” means any corporation (other than the Company) in an unbroken chain of corporations beginning with the Company if, at the time of
granting an Award, each of the corporations other than the last corporation in the unbroken chain owns stock possessing 50% or more of the total combined
voting power of all classes of stock in one of the other corporations in such chain, or such other meaning as may be hereafter ascribed to it in Code
Section 424.

3. Stock Subject to the Plan.

As of the date of adoption of this Plan by the Board or the Committee, as applicable, the number of shares of Stock available for Awards under the Plan
shall be four million two hundred ninety thousand (4,290,000). The maximum number of shares of Stock subject to Awards which may be granted during a
calendar year to a Participant shall be 1,000,000. The Company may, in its
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discretion, use shares of Stock held in the treasury in lieu of authorized but unissued shares of Stock. If any Award shall expire or terminate or be cancelled or
forfeited for any reason, the shares subject to the Award shall again be available for the purposes of the Plan. Any shares of Stock which are tendered by a
Participant as full or partial payment to the Company to satisfy a purchase price related to an Award shall not be available for the purposes of the Plan. To the
extent any shares subject to an Award are not delivered to a Participant because such shares are used to satisfy an applicable tax-withholding obligation or
used to satisfy a purchase price related to an Option, such withheld shares shall not be available for the purposes of the Plan. Shares of Stock subject to the
grant of a Stock Appreciation Right shall not become available again for issuance under this Plan upon exercise or settlement of such Stock Appreciation
Right for a lesser number of shares. Awards that by their terms may only be settled in cash shall not reduce the number of shares available for purposes of the
Plan, and if cash is issued in lieu of Stock pursuant to an Award, such shares will not become available again for issuance under this Plan.

All the shares of Stock available under the Plan may be used for the grant of Incentive Stock Options.

4. Administration.

The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. Subject to the express provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have plenary authority, in its
discretion, to determine the individuals to whom, and the time or times at which, Awards shall be granted and the number of shares, if applicable, to be
subject to each Award. In making such determinations, the Committee may take into account the nature of services rendered by the respective individuals,
their present and potential contributions to the Employer’s success and such other factors as the Committee, in its discretion, shall deem relevant. Subject to
the express provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall also have plenary discretionary authority to interpret the Plan, to prescribe, amend and rescind rules
and regulations relating to it, to determine the terms and provisions of the respective Award Agreements (which need not be identical) and to make all other
determinations necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. The Committee’s determinations on the matters referred to in this Section 4 shall be
conclusive.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee may not amend the terms of outstanding Award Agreements without the approval of the Company’s
shareholders in accordance with applicable law or regulation to either reduce the exercise price of any outstanding Option or Stock Appreciation Right, or
cancel any outstanding Option or Stock Appreciation Right in exchange for cash, another Award, or another Option or Stock Appreciation Right with an
exercise price that is less than the exercise price of the original Option or Stock Appreciation Right.

The Committee shall have the power and authority to determine which individuals, including individuals outside the United States, shall be eligible to
receive Awards under the Plan. The Committee may adopt, amend or rescind rules, procedures or sub-plans relating to the operation and administration of the
Plan to accommodate the specific requirements of local laws, procedures, and practices. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Committee is
specifically authorized to adopt rules, procedures and sub-plans with provisions that limit or modify rights on death, disability, retirement, separation from
service or termination of employment, available methods of exercise or settlement of an Award, payment of income, social insurance contributions and
payroll taxes, withholding procedures and handling of any stock certificates or other indicia of ownership which vary with local requirements. The Committee
may also adopt rules, procedures or sub-plans applicable to Participants employed by particular Employers or at particular locations.
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5. Options.

The Committee, in its discretion, may grant Options which are Incentive Stock Options or Non-Qualified Stock Options, as evidenced by the Award
Agreement, and shall be subject to the foregoing and the following terms and conditions and to such other terms and conditions, not inconsistent therewith, as
the Committee shall determine:

A. Type of Option. Incentive Stock Options may be granted to any individual classified by the Committee as an employee of the Company, a Parent or
a Subsidiary. A Non-Qualified Stock Option may be granted to any individual selected by the Committee, provided that in no event shall a Non-Qualified
Stock Option be granted in exchange for services performed by an individual unless the Company is an “eligible issuer of service recipient stock” within the
meaning of Code Section 409A with respect to such individual. No individual may be granted Options to purchase more than 1,000,000 shares of Stock
during any single fiscal year of the Company.

B. Option Prices. The purchase price of the Stock under each Option shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the Stock at the time of the
granting of the Option, as determined under Section 16; provided that, in the case of a Participant who owns more than 10% of the total combined voting
power of all classes of stock of the Company, a Parent or a Subsidiary (as determined in accordance with Code Section 422), the purchase price of the Stock
under each Incentive Stock Option shall not be less than 110% of the Fair Market Value of the Stock on the date such Option is granted.

C. Exercise – Elections and Restrictions. The purchase price for an Option is to be paid in full upon the exercise of the Option, either (i) in cash, (ii) in
the discretion of the Committee, by the tender to the Company (either actual or by attestation) of shares of Stock already owned by the Participant and
registered in his or her name, having a Fair Market Value equal to the cash exercise price of the Option being exercised, (iii) through a net or cashless
(including broker-assisted cashless exercise, to the extent permissible) form of exercise as permitted by the Committee, or (iv) in the discretion of the
Committee, by any combination of the payment methods specified in clauses (i), (ii), or (iii) hereof; provided that, no shares of Stock may be tendered in
exercise of an Incentive Stock Option if such shares were acquired by the Participant through the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option unless (a) such shares
have been held by the Participant for at least one year and (b) at least two years have elapsed since such prior Incentive Stock Option was granted.

D. Option Terms. The term of each Option shall not be more than ten (10) years from the date of granting thereof, as determined under Section 16, or
such shorter period as is prescribed in the Award Agreement; provided that, in the case of a Participant who owns more than ten percent (10%) of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, a Parent or a Subsidiary, the term of any Incentive Stock Option shall not be more than five
(5) years from the date of granting thereof or such shorter period as prescribed in the Award Agreement. Within such limit, Options will be exercisable at such
time or times, and subject to such restrictions and conditions, as the Committee shall, in each instance, approve, which need not be uniform for all
Participants. The holder of an Option shall have none of the rights of a shareholder with respect to the shares subject to Option until such shares shall be
issued to him or her upon the exercise of his or her Option. In no event shall Option holders be entitled to dividends or dividend equivalents with respect to
such Options.
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E. Successive Option Grants. As determined by the Committee, successive option grants may be made to any Participant under the Plan.

F. Additional Incentive Stock Option Requirements. The maximum aggregate Fair Market Value (determined at the time an Option is granted) of the
Stock with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by a Participant during any calendar year (under all plans of the
Company, a Parent and a Subsidiary) shall not exceed $100,000. A Participant who disposes of Stock acquired upon the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option
either (i) within two years after the date of grant of such Incentive Stock Option or (ii) within one year after the transfer of such shares to the Participant, shall
notify the Company of such disposition and of the amount realized upon such disposition.

6. Stock Appreciation Rights.

A. Grant Terms. The Committee may grant a Stock Appreciation Right independent of an Option or in connection with an Option or a portion thereof. A
Stock Appreciation Right granted in connection with an Option or a portion thereof shall cover the same shares of Stock covered by the Option, or a lesser
number as the Committee may determine. The maximum number of shares of Stock subject to Awards for Stock Appreciation Rights for grants intended to
qualify as Performance-Based Awards during a calendar year shall be 1,000,000. The term of each Stock Appreciation Right shall not be more than ten
(10) years from the date of granting thereof, as determined under Section 16, or such shorter period as is prescribed in the Award Agreement.

B. Exercise Terms. The exercise price per share of Stock of a Stock Appreciation Right shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the Stock at
the time of granting, as determined under Section 16, the Stock Appreciation Right. A Stock Appreciation Right granted independent of an Option shall
entitle the Participant upon exercise to a payment from the Company in an amount equal to the excess of the Fair Market Value on the exercise date of a share
of Stock over the exercise price per share, times the number of Stock Appreciation Rights exercised. A Stock Appreciation Right granted in connection with
an Option shall entitle the Participant to surrender an unexercised Option (or portion thereof) and to receive in exchange an amount equal to the excess of the
Fair Market Value on the exercise date of a share of Stock over the exercise price per share for the Option, times the number of shares covered by the Option
(or portion thereof) which is surrendered. Payment may be made, in the discretion of the Committee, in (i) Stock, (ii) cash or (iii) any combination of Stock
and cash. Cash shall be paid for fractional shares of Stock upon the exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right.

C. Limitations. The Committee may include in the Award Agreement such conditions upon the exercisability or transferability of Stock Appreciation Rights
as it determines in its sole discretion. In no event shall Stock Appreciation Right holders be entitled to dividends or dividend equivalents with respect to such
Stock Appreciation Rights.
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7. Other Stock-Based Awards and Cash-Based Awards.

The Committee may, in its sole discretion, grant Awards of Stock, restricted Stock, restricted Stock units and other Awards that are valued in whole or
in part by reference to the Fair Market Value of Stock. These Awards shall collectively be referred to herein as Other Stock-Based Awards. The Committee
may also, in its sole discretion, grant Cash-Based Awards, which shall have a value as may be determined by the Committee. Other Stock-Based Awards shall
be in such form, and dependent on such conditions, if any, as the Committee shall determine, including, but not limited to, the right to receive fully-vested
shares or the right to receive one or more shares of Stock (or the cash-equivalent thereof) upon the completion of a specified period of service, the occurrence
of an event or the attainment of performance objectives. Other Stock-Based Awards and Cash-Based Awards may be granted with or in addition to other
Awards. Subject to the other terms of the Plan, Other Stock-Based Awards and Cash-Based Awards may be granted to such Participants in such amounts and
upon such terms, and at any time and from time to time, as shall be determined by the Committee and set forth in an Award Agreement; provided that, the
maximum Cash-Based Award that may be granted to a Participant in a calendar year is $1,000,000 to the extent it is also a Performance-Based Award.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no dividends or dividend equivalents shall be paid with respect to unvested Other Stock-Based Awards, including Other
Stock-Based Awards that are intended to be Performance-Based Awards.

8. Performance-Based Awards.

The Committee may, in its sole and absolute discretion, determine that certain Awards should be subject to such requirements so that they are
deductible by the Employer under Code Section 162(m). If the Committee so determines, such Awards shall be considered Performance-Based Awards
subject to the terms of this Section 8, as provided in the Award Agreement. A Performance-Based Award shall be granted by the Committee in a manner to
satisfy the requirements of Code Section 162(m) and the regulations thereunder. The performance measures to be used for purposes of a Performance-Based
Award shall be determined by the Committee, in its sole and absolute discretion, from among the following: the Company’s earnings per share growth;
earnings; earnings per share; cash flow; working capital; expense management; customer satisfaction; revenues; financial return ratios; market performance;
shareholder return and/or value; operating income (loss) (including earnings (loss) before income taxes, depreciation and amortization); net income (loss);
profit returns; margins; stock price; working capital; business trends; production cost; product cost; return on assets; project milestones; and plant and
equipment performance. The performance measures may relate to the Company, a Parent, a Subsidiary, an Employer or one or more units of such an entity.

The Committee shall determine whether, with respect to a performance period, the applicable performance goals have been met with respect to an
Award and, if they have, to so certify and ascertain the amount of the applicable Performance-Based Award. Each performance measure that constitutes a
criteria measured by reference to the Company’s financial statements shall be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as
consistently applied by the Company and, if so determined by the Committee prior to the date the performance measures are established in writing, adjusted,
to the extent permitted under Code Section 162(m), to omit the effects of extraordinary items, gain or loss on the disposal of a business segment, unusual or
infrequently occurring events and transactions and cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles. The Committee shall have the discretion to adjust
the amount payable on a Company-wide
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or divisional basis or to reflect individual performance and/or unanticipated factors; provided, however, that Awards which are designed to qualify as
Performance-Based Awards may not be adjusted upward (the Committee shall retain the discretion to adjust such Awards downward).

9. Vesting Limitations.

Except as otherwise provided in this Plan, each Stock Option and Stock Appreciation Right shall have a minimum vesting period of three years from
the date of grant of such award, provided that such vesting may occur incrementally over such three-year period. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan,
the vesting schedule of any such Award may not accelerate except in the case of death, disability, retirement, a Change of Control, involuntary termination of
employment without cause or voluntary termination for good reason. Except as otherwise provided in this Plan, whether an Award will be subject to
accelerated vesting upon the occurrence of one or more of these events shall be specified in Award Agreement relating to such Award or another agreement
with the Participant, such as an employment agreement.

10. Withholding. Upon exercise of an Option, the Company shall withhold a sufficient number of shares to satisfy the Company’s minimum required statutory
withholding obligations for any taxes incurred as a result of such exercise (based on the minimum statutory withholding rates for federal and state tax
purposes, including payroll taxes); provided that, in lieu of all or part of such withholding, the Participant may pay an equivalent amount of cash to the
Company. Prior to the payment, settlement, or vesting of any Award other than an Option, the Participant shall pay to the Company, or make arrangements
acceptable to the Company for the payment of, amounts sufficient for the Company to satisfy its required statutory withholding obligations. The Company
shall have the right to satisfy its required statutory withholding obligations by withholding an amount of cash otherwise due to a Participant (or shares of
Stock for Awards settled in shares of Stock) upon the settlement of any Award.

11. Nontransferability of Awards.

Unless otherwise determined by the Committee and expressly set forth in an Award Agreement, an Award granted under the Plan shall, by its terms, be
non-transferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and an Award may be exercised, if applicable, during the lifetime of the
Participant thereof, only by the Participant or his or her guardian or legal representative. Notwithstanding the above, the Committee may not provide in an
Award Agreement that an Incentive Stock Option is transferable.

12. Investment Purpose.

Each Award under the Plan shall be awarded only on the condition that all purchases of Stock thereunder shall be for investment purposes, and not with
a view to resale or distribution, except that the Committee may make such provision with respect to Awards granted under this Plan as it deems necessary or
advisable for the release of such condition upon the registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Stock subject to the Award, or upon the
happening of any other contingency warranting the release of such condition.
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13. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization or Corporation Acquisitions.

In the event of any change in the outstanding Stock of the Company by reason of a stock split, stock dividend, combination or reclassification of shares,
recapitalization, consolidation, split-up, merger, or similar event, the Committee shall adjust appropriately: (a) the number of shares or kind of Stock
(i) available for issuance under the Plan, (ii) for which Awards may be granted to an individual Participant, and (iii) covered by outstanding Awards
denominated in stock or units of stock; (b) the exercise and grant prices related to outstanding Awards; and (c) the appropriate Fair Market Value and other
price determinations for such Awards. In the event of any other change affecting the Stock or any distribution (other than normal cash dividends) to holders of
Stock, such adjustments in the number and kind of shares and the exercise, grant and conversion prices of the affected Awards as may be deemed equitable by
the Committee, including adjustments to avoid fractional shares, shall be made to give proper effect to such event. In the event of a corporate merger,
consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, separation, reorganization or liquidation, the Committee shall be authorized to cause to issue or assume stock
options, whether or not in a transaction to which section 424(a) of the Code applies, by means of substitution of new stock options for previously issued stock
options or an assumption of previously issued stock options. In such event, the aggregate number of shares of Stock available for issuance under Awards
under Section 3, including the individual Participant maximums, will be increased to reflect such substitution or assumption.

In the event of a Change of Control, notwithstanding any other provisions of the Plan or an Award Agreement to the contrary, the Committee may, in its
sole discretion, provide for:

(1) Termination of an Award upon the consummation of the Change of Control in exchange for the payment of a cash amount (but only in a
manner which does not result in a violation of Code Section 409A and only to the extent the terminated Award has, in the discretion of the Committee,
a positive value as of the termination date); and/or

(2) Issuance of substitute Awards to substantially preserve the terms of any Awards previously granted under the Plan (but only in a manner
which does not result in a violation of Code Section 409A) which are outstanding upon the consummation of the Change of Control.

Prior to the consummation of a Change of Control, the Committee may also provide for accelerated vesting of any outstanding Awards that are
otherwise unexercisable or unvested as of a date selected by the Committee.

14. Amendment and Termination.

The Board or the Committee may at any time terminate the Plan, or make such modifications to the Plan as either shall deem advisable; provided,
however, that the Board or the Committee may not, without further approval by the shareholders of the Company, increase the maximum number of shares as
to which Awards may be granted under the Plan (except under the anti-dilution provisions of Section 13), or change the class of employees to whom Incentive
Stock Options may be granted. No termination or amendment of the Plan may, without the consent of the Participant to whom any Award shall theretofore
have been granted, adversely affect the rights of such Participant under such Award.
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15. Effectiveness of the Plan.

The Plan shall become effective upon adoption by the Board or the Committee subject, however, to its further approval by the shareholders of the
Company given within twelve (12) months of the date the Plan is adopted by the Board or the Committee at a regular meeting of the shareholders or at a
special meeting duly called and held for such purpose. Grants of Awards may be made prior to such shareholder approval but all Award grants made prior to
shareholder approval shall be subject to the obtaining of such approval and if such approval is not obtained, such Awards shall not be effective for any
purpose.

16. Time of Granting of an Award.

An Award grant under the Plan shall be deemed to be made on the date on which the Committee, by formal action of its members duly recorded in the
records thereof, makes an Award to a Participant (but in no event prior to the adoption of the Plan by the Board or the Committee).

17. Term of Plan.

This Plan shall terminate ten (10) years after the date on which it is approved and adopted by the Board or the Committee and no Award shall be
granted hereunder after the expiration of such ten-year period. Awards outstanding at the termination of the Plan shall continue in accordance with their terms
and shall not be affected by such termination.

18. No Right To Continued Employment.

Nothing in the Plan or in any Award granted pursuant to the Plan shall confer on any individual any right to continue in the employ of the Employer or
interfere in any way with the right of the Employer to terminate his or her employment at any time.

19. Choice of Law.

The Plan shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware without regard to conflicts of law. Unless otherwise
provided in an Award Agreement, recipients of an Award under the Plan are deemed to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the federal or state
courts of Missouri, County of St. Louis, to resolve any and all issues that may arise out of or relate to the Plan or any Award Agreement.
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20. Severability. If any provision of the Plan is, becomes, or is deemed invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, or would disqualify the Plan or
any Award under any law deemed applicable by the Committee, such provision shall be construed or deemed amended or limited in scope to conform to
applicable laws or, in the discretion of the Committee, it shall be stricken and the remainder of the Plan shall remain in full force and effect.

* * *

The foregoing amended and restated Plan was approved and adopted by the Committee on February 9, 2016, and approved by the Stockholders
on May 24, 2016.
 

/s/ Karen W. Duros
Secretary
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

I, William C. Mills III, certify that:
 

 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Stereotaxis, Inc.;
 

 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a – 15(f) and
15d – 15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 
Date: August 10, 2016    /s/ William C. Mills III

   William C. Mills III
   Chief Executive Officer
   Stereotaxis, Inc.
   (Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer

I, Martin C. Stammer, certify that:
 

 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Stereotaxis, Inc.;
 

 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

 

 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a – 15(f) and
15d – 15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

 5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 
Date: August 10, 2016    /s/ Martin C. Stammer

   Martin C. Stammer
   Chief Financial Officer
   Stereotaxis, Inc.
   (Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Stereotaxis, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2016 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William C. Mills III, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: August 10, 2016    /s/ William C. Mills III

   William C. Mills III
   Chief Executive Officer
   Stereotaxis, Inc.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Stereotaxis, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2016 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Martin C. Stammer, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: August 10, 2016    /s/ Martin C. Stammer

   Martin C. Stammer
   Chief Financial Officer
   Stereotaxis, Inc.


